# BYLAWS OF GOLDEN GEN MOVEMENT

# ARTICLE I. PURPOSES

The object of A4 Foundation ("Corporation") is to provide awareness, education, resources, and support to improve the quality of life for aging adults living in long-term care ("LTC") communities, as well as to highlight the need for direct care providers and the rewarding and opportunistic nature of the LTC provider field of work. The Corporation shall be empowered to accomplish its purpose by (i) engaging in marketing initiatives that highlight the opportunities in the LTC provider field; (ii) hosting educational and inspirational speakers for direct care providers, LTC facilities, and family members of LTC community members; (iii) providing scholarships for individuals to further their education in fields that focus on the care of aging individuals; and (iv) providing awards, recognition, and funding to care providers, LTC communities, and other projects, initiatives, and charitable organizations with purposes consistent with that of the Corporation, specifically those with a focus on dementia awareness, education, support, and programming.

In addition, the Corporation is authorized:

- (a) To receive and maintain a fund or funds and, subject to the restrictions and limitations as specified herein, to use and apply the whole or any part of the income and/or principal (as the case may be) exclusively for the charitable, literary, scientific and educational purposes within the meaning of Section 501(c)(3) of the Code and its corresponding regulations;
- (b) To transact any and all other lawful business for which nonprofit corporations may be incorporated under the laws of the State of Nebraska, to the extent that such business furthers the exempt purpose of the Corporation as set forth above and which may otherwise be conducted by organizations that qualify as exempt organizations under section 501(c)(3) of the Code, as amended, or the corresponding provision of any future federal revenue law; and
- (c) To do everything necessary, proper, advisable, and convenient for the accomplishment of the exempt purpose of the Corporation set forth above, and to do all other things incidental thereto or connected therewith which are not forbidden by the Code, the laws of the State of Nebraska, or these Articles of Incorporation.

# ARTICLE II. OFFICES

### (a) Principal Office.

The principal place of business of the Corporation and the principal executive office of the Corporation shall be 1055 N. Hickory Street, Wahoo, Nebraska 68066.

### (b) Registered Office.

The initial registered office of the Corporation shall be 200 S. 21st Street, Suite 400, P.O. Box 82248, Lincoln, NE 68501-2248.

# ARTICLE III. MEMBERS

The Corporation shall have no members.

# ARTICLE IV. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

### (a) <u>General Powers</u>.

The business and affairs of the Corporation shall be managed by its Board of Directors. Directors need not be residents of the State of Nebraska. The Board of Directors shall have full power to act on behalf of the Corporation as permitted by the statutes of the State of Nebraska, the Articles of Incorporation, and these Bylaws, as shall be amended from time to time.

#### (b) Composition, Number, and Tenure.

The number of Directors shall not be less than three (3) nor more than twenty-one (21) and shall be composed of such persons as may be elected by the Corporation's Board of Directors; provided, however, that the initial members of the Board of Directors shall be appointed by the incorporator pursuant to a qualified consent resolution executed contemporaneously with the filing of the Articles of Incorporation. Each Director shall hold office for a term of one year, or such other term not to exceed three years as determined at the time of the election, until his or her successors shall have been elected or qualified or until his or her earlier resignation or removal. If the term of the office shall be more than one year, the membership of the Board of Directors shall be divided into classes so that the term of approximately one-third of each of the Board shall expire each year. At each annual meeting of the Board of Directors, qualified individuals shall be elected by the Board of Directors.

# (c) <u>Annual Meeting/Regular Meetings</u>.

Regular meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held as mutually agreed to by the members of the Board. The annual meeting of the Board of Directors shall be held in December of each calendar year, unless another month is agreed to by the Board members. The Board of Directors may provide, by resolution, the time and place, either within or without the State of Nebraska, for the holding of additional regular meetings of the Board without other notice other than such resolution.

### (d) Special Meetings.

Special meetings of the directors may be called at the request of the President or by any two (2) directors. The person or persons authorized to call special meetings may fix the time and place of the meeting called by them. Notice of any special meeting shall be given at least ten (10) days previous thereto by written notice delivered personally or mailed to each director at his or her regular mailing address or by electronic means. If mailed, such notice shall be deemed to be delivered when deposited in the United States mail, so addressed, with postage thereon prepaid. If notice by electronic means, such notice shall be deemed to be delivered when the notice is sent. Any director may waive notice of any meeting. The attendance of a director at a meeting shall constitute a waiver of notice of such meeting, except where a director attends for the express purpose of objecting to the transaction of the business because the meeting is not properly called. Neither the business to be transacted at nor the purpose of any regular or special meeting of the Board of Directors need be specified in the notice of such meeting.

### (e) Quorum.

A majority of the directors shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business, but if less than a majority is present, a majority of those present may adjourn the meeting from time to time without further notice.

# (f) <u>Manner of Acting/Telephonic/Electronic Communication Meetings</u>.

The act of a majority of the directors present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the act of the Board of Directors. Members of the Board of Directors may participate in a meeting of such board by means of a conference telephone or similar communications equipment by which all persons participating in the meeting can hear each other at the same time. Participation by such means shall constitute presence in person at a meeting.

### (g) <u>Compensation</u>.

It is the intention of the Board of Directors of the Corporation that directors shall serve in a voluntary capacity without payment or remuneration except reimbursement for out-of-pocket expenses actually incurred by such director. The Board of Directors may by resolution provide for the payment of salaries or fees to a director or directors for specific services rendered to the Corporation.

### (h) <u>Vacancies, Resignations, and Removal</u>.

A vacancy in the Board of Directors shall exist upon a death, resignation, or removal of a Director, or when there is less than the minimum number of Directors set forth in Article IV, or when the number of directors has been increased and that increased number has not been filled. When a vacancy exists, it may be filled by the Board of Directors by majority vote. A director elected to fill a vacancy shall be elected for a term as determined by the Board of Directors.

A Director elected by the Board of Directors may be removed by the Board of Directors upon a two-thirds (2/3) majority vote whenever, in its judgment, the best interests of the Corporation will be served by such removal.

#### (i) <u>Informal Action by Directors</u>.

Any action required to be taken at a meeting of directors, or any other action which may be taken at a meeting of directors, may be taken without a meeting if a consent in writing, setting forth the action so taken, shall be signed by all directors.

# ARTICLE V. OFFICERS

#### (a) Number.

The officers of the Corporation shall be a President, Vice President, a Secretary and a Treasurer, as elected by the Board of Directors at its annual meeting. The Board of Directors may elect or appoint other officers, including one or more Executive Vice Presidents, one or more Assistant Vice Presidents, one or more Assistant Secretaries and one or more Assistant Treasurers, as it shall deem desirable, such officers to have the authority and perform the duties prescribed from time to time by the Board of Directors. Any two or more offices may be held by the same person, except the offices of President and Secretary and except the offices of President and Vice President.

### (b) Election and Term.

The officers shall be elected by the Board of Directors at its annual meeting. Each officer shall hold office until his successor shall have been elected and qualified, or until his death, resignation, or removal.

### (c) <u>Removal</u>.

Any officer elected or appointed by the Board of Directors may be removed by the Board of Directors when the best interests of the Corporation would be served thereby, as determined in the sole discretion of the Board of Directors.

#### (d) <u>Vacancies</u>.

A vacancy in any office which occurs for any reason may be filled by the Board of Directors for the unexpired portion of the term.

### (e) <u>President</u>.

The President shall preside at all meetings of the directors. The President shall be the general manager of the Corporation and, subject to the control of the Board of Directors, shall in general supervise and direct the operations of the Corporation. The President may sign, with the Secretary or any other proper officer of the Corporation thereunto authorized by the Board of Directors, deeds, mortgages, bonds, contracts, bids, or other instruments which the Board of Directors has authorized to be executed, except in cases where the signing and execution thereof shall be expressly delegated by the Board of Directors or by these Bylaws to some other officer or agent of the Corporation, or shall be required by law to be otherwise signed or executed, and in general shall perform all duties as may be prescribed by the Board of Directors from time to time.

# (f) Vice President.

In the absence of the President or in the event of his or her death, inability, or refusal to act, the Vice President shall perform the duties of the President and, when so acting, shall have all the powers of and be subject to all the restrictions upon the President. In addition, the Vice President shall perform such other duties as from time to time may be assigned by the President or by the Board of Directors.

# (g) <u>Secretary</u>.

The Secretary shall:

1. keep the minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors in one or more books provided for that purpose;

- 2. see that all notices are duly given in accordance with the provisions of these Bylaws and as required by law;
- be custodian of the corporate records and of the seal of the Corporation and see that the seal of the Corporation is affixed to all documents the execution of which on behalf of the Corporation under its seal is duly authorized;
- 4. keep a register of the post office address of each director which shall be furnished to the Secretary by such directors;
- 5. in general perform all duties incident to the office of Secretary and such other duties as from time to time may be assigned by the President or by the Board of Directors.

# (h) <u>Treasurer</u>.

If required by the Board of Directors, the Treasurer shall give a bond for the faithful discharge of his duties in such sum and with such surety or sureties as the Board of Directors shall determine. The Treasurer shall:

- 1. have charge and custody of and be responsible for all funds and securities of the Corporation;
- receive and give receipts for monies due and payable to the Corporation from any source whatsoever, and deposit all such monies in the name of the Corporation in such banks, trust companies or other depositories as shall be selected in accordance with these Bylaws; and
- in general perform all duties incident to the office of Treasurer and such other duties as from time to time may be assigned by the President or by the Board of Directors.

### (i) <u>Salaries</u>.

It is the intention of the Board of Directors of the Corporation that officers of the Corporation shall serve in a voluntary capacity without payment or remuneration except for reimbursement for out-of-pocket expenses actually incurred by such officer. The Board of Directors by resolution may provide for the payment of salaries or fees to an officer or officers for specific services rendered to the Corporation.

# (j) Loans to Officers and Directors.

The Corporation shall not lend money to nor guarantee the obligation of any Director or officer of the Corporation.

# ARTICLE VI. EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Executive Committee of the Board of Directors shall consist of the President, the Vice President, and one or more of the members of the Board of Directors designated by a majority of the Board of Directors at the annual meeting. The Executive Committee shall have and exercise the authority of the Board of Directors pursuant to the Nebraska Nonprofit Corporation Act at all times when a meeting of the Board of Directors is not in session, provided, however, that the Executive Committee shall not have the authority to authorize any distributions in excess of \$1,000, approve or recommend the merger, or the sale, pledge or transfer of all of the Corporation's assets, elect, appoint or remove Directors to fill vacancies on the Board of Directors or any of its committees, or adopt, amend or repeal the Articles or Bylaws of the Corporation. The Executive Committee shall meet at such times as the Board of Directors shall determine. The Executive Committee shall maintain a written record of its proceedings and shall report its proceedings to the Board of Directors at the next meeting of the full Board of Directors.

# ARTICLE VII. OTHER COMMITTEES

The President, with the guidance and assistance from the Executive Committee, may appoint such other committees to assist in achieving the goals and objectives of the Corporation. Such committees may constitute, but shall not be limited to, a Finance Advisory Committee and Public Relations Committee. All appointed committees shall report on a regular basis to the President. The committees shall be annually evaluated by the Executive Committee.

# ARTICLE VIII. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

The Board of Directors may employ, contract, or arrange for a competent chief executive whose title shall be Executive Director. The Executive Director shall be the chief executive of the Corporation, and subject to the direction and under the supervision of the Board of Directors, shall have general charge of the business affairs and property of the Corporation. The Executive Director shall have such other duties and responsibilities and may exercise such other powers as are usually incident to the office or as from time to time may be assigned by these Bylaws or the Board of Directors.

# ARTICLE IX. CONTRACTS, LOANS, CHECKS, DEPOSITS, AND CONTRIBUTIONS

### (a) <u>Contracts</u>.

The Board of Directors may authorize any officer or officers, agent or agents, to negotiate, bid on and enter into any contract or execute and deliver any contract in the name of and on behalf of the Corporation, and such authority may be general or confined to specific instances.

### (b) Loans.

No loans shall be contracted on behalf of the Corporation and no evidence of indebtedness shall be issued in its name unless authorized by a resolution of the Board of Directors. Such authority may be general or confined to specific instances. No loans shall be made by the Corporation to its officers or directors.

### (c) <u>Checks</u>.

All checks, drafts, or other orders for the payment of money, notes, or other evidence of indebtedness issued in the name of the Corporation shall be signed by such officer or officers, agent or agents of the Corporation and in such manner as shall from time to time be determined by resolution of the Board of Directors.

#### (d) Deposits.

All funds of the Corporation not otherwise employed shall be deposited from time to time to the credit of the Corporation in such banks, trust companies or other depositories as the Board of Directors may select,

# (e) <u>Contributions</u>.

Any contributions, bequests, or gifts made to the Corporation shall be accepted or collected and deposited only in such manner as shall be designated by the Board of Directors.

# ARTICLE X. FISCAL YEAR

The fiscal year of the Corporation shall be a calendar year.

# ARTICLE XI. WAIVER OF NOTICE

Whenever any notice is required to be given to any incorporator or member or director of the Corporation under the provisions of these Bylaws or under the provisions of the Nebraska Nonprofit Corporation Act or any other applicable law, a waiver thereof in writing, signed by the person or persons entitled to such notice, whether before or after the time stated therein, shall be deemed equivalent to the giving of such notice.

# ARTICLE XII. MAINTENANCE OF EXEMPT STATUS

Notwithstanding any other provision of these Bylaws, no director, officer, employee, or representative of the Corporation shall take any action or carry on any activity by or on behalf of the Corporation not permitted to be taken or carried on by an organization exempt under the provisions of Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and its regulations as they now exist or as they may hereafter be amended from time to time. No director, officer, or employee of, or member of a committee of, or person connected with the Corporation, or any private individual, shall receive at any time any of the net earnings or pecuniary profit from the operations of the Corporation; provided, that this shall not prevent the payment to any such person of reasonable compensation for services rendered to or for the Corporation in effecting any of its purposes as shall be fixed by the Board of Directors; and no such person or persons shall be entitled to share in the distribution of any of the Corporate assets upon dissolution of the Corporation. All directors of the Corporation shall be deemed expressly to have consented and agreed that upon such dissolution or winding up of the affairs of the Corporation, after all debts have been satisfied, any assets then remaining in the hands of the Board of Directors shall be distributed, transferred, conveyed, delivered, and paid over, in such amounts as the Board of Directors may determine, or as may be determined by a court of competent jurisdiction upon application of the Board of Directors, exclusively to charitable, religious, scientific, literary; or educational organizations which would then qualify under the provisions of Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and its regulations as they now exist or as they may hereafter be amended.

# ARTICLE XIII. INDEMNIFICATION

### (a) General Statement of Indemnification.

The Corporation shall, to the extent legally permissible, indemnify each person who may serve or who has served at any time as an officer, director, committee member or employee of the Corporation against all expenses and liabilities, including, without limitation, attorney fees, judgments, fines, excise taxes, penalties and settlement payments, reasonably incurred by or imposed upon such person in connection with any

threatened, pending or completed action, suit or proceeding in which he or she may become involved by reason of his or her service in such capacity; provided that no indemnification shall be provided for any such person with respect to any matter as to which he or she shall have been finally adjudicated in any proceeding not to have acted in good faith in the reasonable belief that such action was in the best interests of the Corporation; and further provided that any compromise or settlement payment shall be approved by a majority vote of a quorum of directors who are not at that time parties to the proceeding.

### (b) <u>Inures to Heirs, Successors, and Assigns</u>.

The indemnification provided hereunder shall inure to the benefit of the heirs, executors, and administrators of persons entitled to indemnification hereunder. The right of indemnification under this Article shall be in addition to and not exclusive of all other rights to which any person may be entitled.

#### (c) Amendments.

No amendment or repeal of the provisions of this Article which adversely affects the right of an indemnified person under this Article shall apply to such person with respect to those acts or omissions which occurred at any time prior to such amendment or repeal, unless such amendment or repeal was voted by or was made with the written consent of such indemnified person.

# (d) <u>Contractual Rights</u>.

This Article constitutes a contract between the Corporation and the indemnified officers, directors, committee members, and employees. No amendment or repeal of the provisions of this Article which adversely affects the right of an indemnified officer, director, committee member, or employee under this Article shall apply to such officer, director, committee member, or employee with respect to those acts or omissions which occurred at any time prior to such amendment or repeal.

# ARTICLE XIV. AMENDMENTS

These Bylaws may be altered, amended, or repealed and new Bylaws may be adopted by a two-thirds  $(\frac{2}{3})$  majority vote of the Board of Directors at any regular or special meeting of the Board of Directors called for such purpose.

ADOPTED AND EFFECTIVE as of the 10th day of July, 2023, by resolution taken by the sole incorporator pursuant to Section 21-1925(a) of the Nebraska Nonprofit Corporation Act.